# Using the Language Interpretation Feature in Zoom



ARIZONA SUPREME COURT ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE OF THE COURTS

JUNE 2020

# Contents

INTRODUCTION	2
Scheduling an Interpreter	2
Equipment and Software Requirements	2
Remote Interpreting Best Practices	3
Host Resources	3
CONFIGURING ZOOM ACCOUNT SETTINGS	4
Steps to Enable Language Interpretation Feature in Zoom	4
SCHEDULING A MEETING WITH AN INTERPRETER	5
MANAGING A MEETING WITH AN INTERPRETER: HOST CONTROLS	8
Starting the Interpretation Feature	8
Chat Feature	9
Waiting Room	10
Recording:	10
Ending a Meeting	10
USING BREAKOUT ROOMS FOR ATTORNEY-CLIENT CONFERENCES	11
INTERPRETING AND INTERPRETER CONTROLS IN ZOOM	
Joining the Meeting as an Interpreter	
Zoom Meeting Basics	
Zoom Interpretation Feature	15
How it Works	15
Interpreter Resources and Best Practices	17
OTHER INFORMATION: SMALL FORMAT SCREENS	
LEP Participants in Remote Court Events	
Zoom Meeting Basics for Mobile Devices	
Zoom Interpretation Feature for Mobile Devices	
How it Works	20
Participant Resources	

# INTRODUCTION

The Zoom Language Interpretation feature allows courts to schedule hearings and events with interpreters for Limited English Proficient (LEP) parties. This feature allows for full simultaneous interpretation from a court-provided interpreter with LEP parties listening to the interpreter on a designated audio channel within the Zoom meeting. This document reviews the steps and best practices for using this feature.

### Scheduling an Interpreter

As with all court events, courts are responsible for providing a qualified court interpreter for a Zoom meeting. Courts should follow their normal scheduling and procurement procedures. Information and resources are available from the <u>Administrative Office of the Courts (AOC)</u> should courts need assistance hiring a qualified interpreter.

#### Equipment and Software Requirements

Participants must download the Zoom app from the Zoom Download Center.

*Tip!* Participants must have current versions of the Zoom software prior to the event. The Zoom Language Interpretation feature is only available on:

- ✓ Zoom's Desktop Client Windows:
  - o 4.5.3261.0825 or higher
  - o macOS: 4.5.3261.0825 or higher
- ✓ Zoom Mobile Apps:
  - o Android: 4.5.3261.0825 or higher
  - o iOS: 4.5.0 (3261.0825) or higher

*Tip!* Mobile devices with small screens (i.e. cell phones) are not recommended for the host, interpreter, or LEP participant. Meeting controls and options may function differently or be more difficult to use on these devices.

**Connectivity:** A broadband internet connection with at least 5 MBPS upload/download (10 MBPS is safer) and a maximum 50 ms of ping (latency). Use <u>www.speedtest.net</u> to test speed and ping.

**Computer:** Most modern and up-to-date desktop and laptop computers will work well. Minimum system requirements per Zoom are Dual Core 2 Ghz or higher (Intel i3/i5/i7 or AMD equivalent) and 4 GB RAM.

**Webcam:** The integrated camera on most modern computers will be sufficient. For those without an integrated camera, Zoom provides a <u>list of options for external webcams</u>.

**Headset:** A headset with integrated microphone is recommended, even for computers with their own integrated speakers and microphones, to improve audio quality. Good quality headsets are available for approximately \$50 from industry leaders such as Jabra, Koss, Plantronics, Sennheiser, and others.

## Remote Interpreting Best Practices

- 1. Book an interpreter credentialed through the Arizona Court Interpreter Credentialing Program (ACICP).
- 2. Notify LEP litigants and all parties involved that their upcoming hearing or event will be performed remotely and that interpreter services will be provided.
  - a. Communicate how to participate, provide instructions and technical requirements, and a court contact for questions.
- 3. At the beginning of the event, allow the interpreter and the LEP person to greet each other in their language to establish that the language or dialect is a correct match.
- 4. The judge should:
  - a. Ask the interpreter to state their qualifications or credentials for the record.
  - b. Remind all parties that they should:
    - i. Speak one at a time and in short sentences.
    - ii. Identify themselves before each utterance.
    - iii. Pause between statement to allow interpreting (if consecutive interpretation is being used).
    - iv. Speak loudly and clearly.
  - c. Provide specific guidelines and instructions to ensure a smooth event (i.e., switching to the correct audio channel, informing parties of the interpreter's role, explaining procedures to follow if an LEP person does not understand or cannot hear something, etc.)
- 5. The judge or designated court staff should be the meeting host in a remote hearing.
- 6. If the LEP person and his/her attorney need to confer privately, or an off-the-record bench conference is required, in Zoom, the host can create a breakout room (see <u>Using Breakout Rooms for Attorney-Client</u> <u>Conferences</u> section below).

*Tip!* See the <u>Remote Interpreting Best Practices</u> document.

#### Host Resources

#### General:

- Zoom Trainings
- <u>Zoom Meetings Training Reference Guide (.pdf)</u>
- Zoom Online Event Best Practices (.pdf)
- <u>Zoom Meeting Housekeeping (.pptx)</u>

#### Zoom Interpretation Feature:

- Language Interpretation in Meetings and Webinars
- <u>Zoom Simultaneous Interpretations for Meetings and Webinars</u> by Zoom (YouTube)
- Using Zoom's Interpretation Features by Joseph Adams (YouTube)

# CONFIGURING ZOOM ACCOUNT SETTINGS

In order to use the interpreting feature in Zoom, you must have a licensed account in any of the Business, Education, or Enterprise categories. Other licenses that include the Webinar add-on can also use the interpreting feature. Only the meeting host needs to have one of these licenses for the interpreter feature to work. No one else in the meeting, not even the interpreter, needs a Zoom license in order to participate in a Zoom meeting.

Once a qualifying license is obtained, the Language Interpretation feature must be enabled. Follow the steps below to verify if the feature is enabled. Note, however, that if the account you use was established by the AOC, this feature is already enabled.

**NOTE:** Zoom accounts set up through the AOC have the interpreting feature enabled.

## Steps to Enable Language Interpretation Feature in Zoom

- 1. Login to your Zoom account.
- Once logged in, click on "Settings" in the menu on the left of the page.
- Next, click on the "In Meeting (Advanced)" option under the "Meeting" heading.
- 4. Scroll down until you see the "Language Interpretation" setting and make sure it is toggled ON (it should appear in a light blue color if it is on). Once you turn it on, it will remain on and you will not have to repeat this step in the future.

If you do not see the "Language Interpretation" option in your "In Meeting (Advanced)" settings and you have a qualifying license, you will need to contact Zoom Support to have the feature enabled for your account.

Click the Chat icon in the bottom right corner of the screen to initiate a conversation with Zoom Support.





# SCHEDULING A MEETING WITH AN INTERPRETER

Once the Language Interpretation feature is enabled, a meeting with an interpreter may be scheduled. The host may take the following steps to schedule an event using an interpreter.

	PLANS & PRICING CONTACT SALES	-	SCHEDULE & MEETING	JOIN A MEETING	HOSTA MEETING +
Profile	My Meetings > Schedule :	a Meeting	1		
Meetings	Schedule a Meeting				
Webinars	Topic	(KANAN DESILITIS	-		
Settings	Description (Optional)	Enter your meeting description			
Account Profile			A		
Reports	When	05/18/2020 🛛 9.00 v AM v			
Attend Live Training	Duration	$\fbox{1} \twoheadrightarrow hr \fbox{0} \% min$			
Video Tutorials	Time Zone	(GMT-7:00) Arizona v			
Knowledge Base		Recurring meeting			
chedule a Meeting - Zoom X ↓ → C @ zoomus/meeting/sch	edule -		REQUESTA D	340 1.682.799.0125	- 0 약 ☆ @ Incognite RESOLIRCE • SUPPOR
idedules Meeting-Zour × → C a zoomuk/meeting-tour COOM socutroves - Attend Live Training Video Tatarials	ndule Prans & Precing Contract sales Time Zone	(12/12/2007/00/11/00) (RM17500 Arcona	REMETAR REMETAR SCHEDULE A MEETING	MO 1.888.799.0125	– 3 • ☆ @ inception HECOLICIS • BARTOR HOSTAMETING •
Códesire a Maesing - Sour × ↓ → C a zoemuschmeeting Lohn COOM socurrows - Attend Uve Takining Video Takinini Koowledge Base	elade Prans & Pricence Constact sales Time Zone	(1, 22) 1, 1, 22, 23, 25, 25, 25, 25, 26, 20, 10, 20, 20, 10, 10, 10, 10, 10, 10, 10, 10, 10, 1	REALET A DE SON DE LA METINO	MO 1.888.799.0120 JOIN A MEETING	- a • 1 () incento HECOLOS - BARGER HOSTAMETRIC -
Colector a Materiay - Zaver x € Colector a Materia Materia Materia Colector Material M	PLANG & PRICING CONTRACT MULES	(In the second s	REMETA DE REMETA DE SCHEDULE A MEETING	MO LINE 7990123	← 0     ← 0
elededar s Meeting - Zeer x ↔ C	PLANS & PROVID PLANS & PROVID Time Zone Registration Meeting ID	Arthur and a Commission and a Commissin and a Commission and a Commission and a Commission and a Commis	UKUMATAN UKUMATAN SCHIDULI AMUTING	MO 1.881.7990122	- 0 • 2 Proprio RECORDO - SHITCH HOSTAMETING -
idebut a Marsing - Zeer x ↔ → C ← zearuuk/merting/buth OOOM sources + Attend Use Tuning Video Tatariak Knowlenge Base	PLANS & PRONG CORTACT SALES	(CATT-2000 Antono	нолгала нолгала 25384-381 <b>(</b>	MO 1888.797022	- 0     - 0    0    0    0    0    0    0    0    0
Adeada e Massing - Zoon x      A     C	PLANG & PSICING CONTACT SALES PLANG & PSICING CONTACT SALES Time Zone Registration Meeting ID Meeting ID Video	Add Tool of Control (1999)     Control of Control (1999)     Realing metric     Realing     Control Automatically      Prenard Meeting D1     Realing     Rea	и <mark>са 1018-121</mark> ка новатак 25 384 4381 <b>(</b>	MO LINE PROTO	- 3 ↔ ↔ Propuls HECOLOGI - ELPLON HOLT AMETING -
elector a Meeting - Zeer x → C a zeenuuk/meeting lock OOO sources = Attend for Taining Video Tateridis Koowledge Base	PLANS & PROVID PLANS & PROVID Time Zone Registration Meeting ID Meeting ID Video	Arthur and a Son and an and a son and a son and a son a	иод 1.1399 ( од ножета ки зснооца аметика 25 384 4381 <b>(</b>	NO 1000 PP 0020	- a •  •  •  •  •  •  •  •  •  •  •  •  •

ZOOM SOLUT

F P Type here to search

- 1. Login to your Zoom account.
- 2. Click on "Schedule a Meeting".

3. Enter the topic, date, time, and duration of the meeting.

 Scroll down and make sure that "Generate Automatically" is selected for "Meeting ID"

**Note:** The Zoom interpretation feature will NOT work if "Generate Automatically" is not selected.

5. Configure other settings as desired, including passwords, video on/off, and audio settings.

**Note:** It is recommended to leave the audio configuration set to "Both".

Meeting Options	Enable join before host
	Mute participants upon entry <sup>™</sup>
	Enable waiting room
	Only authenticated users can join
	Breakout Room pre-assign
	Record the meeting automatically on the local computer
O H	🛤 🂁 😌 🎜 📓 🛤 🛤 🖼 📾 🛤 🧐 🚳 🖉 🖓 🚱 🖓 📾 🖬

.

6. At the bottom of the meeting set up screen, check the box for "Enable language interpretation". Then, enter the email address for the interpreter and the languages they will be interpreting (i.e., English <> Spanish, English <> Chinese, English <> German, etc.) and click "Save".

**Note**: The interpreter will receive an email notification of the event directly from the Zoom portal. If you do not know the interpreter's email address ahead of time, you may enter the host's email address and then forward the notification to the interpreter at a later time.

		REQUESTA DEMO 1.888.799.0125 RE	Sources + Support
SOLUTIONS - PLAN	5 & PRICING CONTACT SALES	SCHEDULE A MEETING JOIN A MEETING HO	ST A MEETING +
		Record the meeting automatically on the local computer	
	Alternative Hosts	Example: mary@company.com, peter@school.edu	
	Interpretation	K Enable language interpretation     Avobods@courts.az;     English v 2 (Spanish v) ×	
		+ Add Interpreter	
		Save Cancel	
			_

**Note**: If the language the interpreter speaks is not listed, simply choose any available language. Just remember that during the Zoom meeting, that language will appear on screen for all attendees and you will have to explain the discrepancy to the meeting participants.

			REQUEST A DEMO 1.888.	799.0125 Resources - Suppo
	PLANS & PRICING CONTACT SAL	ES	SCHEDULE A MEETING JOIN A MEE	TING HOST A MEETING +
Profile	My Meetings > Mana	ige "Zoom Demo"		
Meetings Webinars	Topic	Zoom Demo		Start this Meeting
Recordings	Time	May 18, 2020 10:3	30 AM Arizona	
Settings		Add to	utlook Calendar (.ics) 🕥 Yahoo Calendar	
Account Profile Reports	Meeting ID	925 0282 4544		
	Meeting Password	Show		
Attend Live Training Video Tutorials	Invite Link	https://zoom.us/j/S	92502824544?pwd=MXg2VHJGN0I3UGtPQnhyWUdTVUhQQT09	Copy Invitation
Knowledge Base			0#	

A meeting confirmation screen will appear.

**Note:** If you click the "Outlook Calendar" option, a meeting appointment with all the Zoom information needed to join the meeting will appear.

		8 ÷					200m Demo -								
File	Appointment	insert Fo	rmat Text R	eview He	ip ÇTellm	e what you wa	nt to do								
? >	🧲 🗉 Calendar	8	-9	<u>e</u>	N		Show As:	Busy	• 📀	۲		Private	٢	C,	
ve & Del	lete 🕞 Forward 🔹	Appointm	ent Scheduling Assistant	Skype Meeting	Meeting	Invite Attendees	🐥 Reminder	10 minutes	+ Recurrence	Time C	ategorize	<ul> <li>High Important</li> <li>Low Importance</li> </ul>	lnsights	View Templates	
	Actions		Show	Skype Meeti	ng Meeting Note	Attendees		Options		5		Tags		My Templates	
bject	Zoom Demo														
ation	https://zoom.us/j/9	92502824544?	pwd=MXg2VH/	SN0IBUGtPQn	hyWUdTVUhQQT0	9									
rt time	Mon 5/18/2020		10:30 AM	▼ Arizon	1	👻 🗆 A	II day event								
d time	Mon 5/18/2020		12:00 PM	▼ Arizon	1	Ŧ									
					-										
nin Zoc	om Meeting														
ttps://	zoom.us/1/9250	28245442	owd-MXc210	UCNOI2110	and the second										
ccp.50.7.	2001110.27 9 22001				- EPUDDVWUD	IVUEDOTO	3								
		2024044.	pwu-mingz r	njGiwijou	stPUnnywud	TVUhQQT0	2								
leeting	z ID: 925 0282 45	544	pwu-imingz v	njawijou	strunnywud	TVUhQQT0	2								
leeting	g ID: 925 0282 45 rd: 393389	544	pwu-imagz v	1361401500	stPQnhyw0d	TVUhQQT0	2								
Aeeting asswor	g ID: 925 0282 45 rd: 393389 o mobile	544	pwd-MAg2+	njewijeu.	<u>strunnywua</u>	Ινυήαατο	2								
Aeeting asswor Ine tap 12532:	g ID: 925 0282 45 rd: 393389 9 mobile 158782,,925028:	544 24544#,,1	#,393389# U:	S (Tacoma)	<u>stPQnhyWUd</u>	Ινυκαατο	2								
Aeeting asswor Ine tap 12532: 13462-	g ID: 925 0282 45 rd: 393389 o mobile 158782,,925028: 487799,,925028:	544 24544#,,1 24544#,,1	#,393389# U: #,393389# U:	S (Tacoma)	]	Ινυκαατο	2								
Aeeting asswor Ine tap 12532: 134624	g ID: 925 0282 45 rd: 393389 o mobile 158782,,925028: 487799,,925028:	544 24544#,,1 24544#,,1	#,393389# U: #,393389# U:	S (Tacoma) S (Houston	]	TYUHQQTO	2								
Neetinş asswor Ine tap 12532: 13462: I3462: Ial by y	g ID: 925 0282 45 rd: 393389 o mobile 158782,,925028: 487799,,925028; your location	544 24544#,,1 24544#,,1	#,393389# U: #,393389# U:	S (Tacoma) S (Houston	]	TYUHQQTØ	2								
Neeting asswor Ine tap 12532: 13462- Ial by y +1 2	g ID: 925 0282 45 rd: 393389 p mobile 158782,,925028: 487799,,925028: your location 253 215 8782 US	544 24544#,,1 24544#,,1 5 (Tacoma)	#,393389# U: #,393389# U: )	S (Tacoma) S (Houston	]	τνυκαατα	2								
Neeting asswor ne tap 12532: 13462- ial by y +1 2 +1 2	g ID: 925 0282 45 rd: 393389 p mobile 158782,,925028: 487799,,925028: your location 253 215 8782 US 346 248 7799 US	544 24544#,,1 24544#,,1 5 (Tacoma) 5 (Houston	#,393389# U: #,393389# U: ) )	S (Tacoma) S (Houston	]	TYUHQQTU	2								
Aeeting asswor ne tap 12532: 134624 Nal by y +12 +13 +10	g ID: 925 0282 45 rd: 393389 mobile 158782,,925028; 487799,,925028; your location 253 215 8782 US 346 248 7799 US 669 900 6833 US	544 24544#,,1 24544#,,1 5 (Tacoma) S (Houston S (San Jose S (San Jose	#,393389# U: #,393389# U: ) ) )	S (Tacoma) S (Houston	]	TYUHQQTU	2								
Neeting asswoi ne tap 12532: 13462- ial by y +1 1 +1 1 +1 1 +1 1	g ID: 925 0282 45 rd: 393389 o mobile 158782, 925028: 487799, 925028: 487799, 925028: 525 215 8782 US 346 248 7799 US 669 900 6833 US 301 715 8592 US	544 24544#,,11 24544#,,11 24544#,,11 5 (Tacoma) 5 (Tacoma) 5 (Houston 5 (San Jose 5 (German)	#,393389# U: #,393389# U: ) ) ) ) ) ) ) )	S (Tacoma) S (Houston	]	νυκαστο	2								
Aeeting asswor Ine tap 12532: 134624 Iial by y +12 +13 +11 +13 +13	g ID: 925 0282 45 rd: 393389 o mobile 158782,925028: 487799,925028: 487799,925028: 487799,925028: 487799,925028: 487799,925028: 486 248 7799 US 466 900 6833 US 301 715 8592 US 312 626 6799 US	544 24544#,,1i 24544#,,1i 24544#,,1i 5 (Tacoma) 5 (Houston 5 (San Jose 5 (Germani 5 (Chicago)	#,393389# U: #,393389# U: ) ) ) town) ;)	S (Tacoma) S (Houston	]	νυκαστο	2								
Aeeting asswor Ine tap 12532: 134624 Iial by y +11 +11 +11 +11 +11 +12	g ID: 925 0282 45 rd: 393389 mobile 158782,,925028; 487799,,925028; 487799,,925028; 346 248 7799 U 5346 248 7799 U 536 248 7799 U 5312 626 6799 U 5312 626 6799 U 532 626 6799 U 592 926 56 99 U 50 26 26 29 25	544 24544#,,1i 24544#,,1i 24544#,,1i 5 (Tacoma) 5 (Houston 5 (San Jose 5 (Germani 5 (Chicago) 5 (New Yor 5 (New Yor	#,393389# U #,393389# U #,393389# U ) ) town) town) ) k)	S (Tacoma) S (Houston	]	νυκαστο	2								
Aeeting 'asswoi Die tap 12532: 134624 Dial by y +12 +13 +14 +13 +14 +13 +15 Meeting	g ID: 925 0282 45 rd: 393389 mobile 158782,,925028: 487799,925028: your location 253 215 8782 US 366 248 7799 US 669 900 6833 US 301 715 8592 US 312 626 6799 US 929 205 6099 US g ID: 925 0282 45 r <sup>1</sup> 39380	544 24544#,,1i 24544#,,1i 5 (Tacoma) 5 (Houston 5 (San Jose 5 (Germani 5 (Chicago) 5 (New Yor 544	#,393389# U: #,393389# U: ) ) ) ) town) ) ( ) ( )	S (Tacoma) S (Houston	]	IVUHQQ10	24								
Meeting Passwoi Dne tap (12532) (134624 Dial by y) +12 +13 +14 +14 +13 +14 Meeting 'asswoi	g ID: 925 0282 45 rd: 393389 mobile 158782, 925028: 487799, 925028: 487799, 925028: 346 248 7799 US 346 248 7799 US 346 248 7799 US 346 248 7799 US 346 248 7799 US 311 265 6799 US 312 626 6799 US g ID: 925 0282 45 rd: 393389 ur local aumher:	544 24544#,,12 24544#,,12 24544#,,12 5 (Houstom 5 (San Jose 5 (Germant 5 (Chicago) 5 (New Yor 544	#,393389# U: #,393389# U: ) ) ) ) ) ( ) ) ( ) ) ( ) ) ( ) ) ( ) ) ( ) ) ( )	S (Tacoma) S (Houston	)	<u>IVUHQQ10</u>	24								
Aeeting asswori 12532:134624 Halby y +11 +11 +11 +11 feeting asswori ind you	g ID: 925 0282 4/ di: 393389 o mobile 158782,,925028; 487799,,925028; 487799,925028; 346 248 7799 US 669 900 6833 US 312 626 6799 US 329 205 6099 US 329 205 6099 US g ID: 925 0282 45 di: 393389 ur local number;	544 24544#,,1i 24544#,,1i 5 (Tacoma) 5 (Tacoma) 5 (Sarmani 5 (Germani 5 (Chicago) 5 (Chicago) 5 (Chicago) 5 (Chicago) 5 (New Yor 544	#,393389# U: #,393389# U: ) ) town) ) k) mom.us/U/acc	S (Tacoma) S (Houston	]	IVUHQQ10	2								

The email generated for the interpreter will look similar to this:



# MANAGING A MEETING WITH AN INTERPRETER: HOST CONTROLS

### Starting the Interpretation Feature

The host starts by turning on the interpretation feature in the meeting by clicking the "Interpretation" icon in the toolbar at the bottom of the meeting screen.



**Note:** The "Interpretation" icon will not appear in the toolbar if this feature was not enabled when the meeting was originally scheduled, or if the meeting was scheduled using a "Personal Meeting ID".

Interpreter 1			×
interpeter			
English	✓ ₹	Spanish	~
	+ Add I	nterpreter	Start

Starting the interpretation feature in the Zoom meeting

At this point, they should be instructed to click on that icon and choose the language channel that corresponds to their needs. A window will open for the host to confirm the interpreter and their language. If an interpreter is not already assigned during the setup of the meeting the host can use this menu to assign any member of the meeting the role of interpreter.

When ready, simply click "Start" to begin the interpretation session. This menu can be used at any time to start the interpreter feature, add additional interpreters, or stop the interpreter feature and bring everyone to one language channel.

Once started, all meeting participants will get a notification that interpretation is now available, and they will see a globe in their respective toolbars.



Interpretation Feature Enabled for Participants

If an option is not chosen by the participant, they will hear parts from both channels but are likely to miss utterances in one language or the other. For this reason, it is recommended that all participants select a language.

Language Interpretation	Done
Original Audio	
English	
Chinese	~
Mute Original Audio	

On the English channel you will hear all utterances on the English channel which will include any time the interpreter is giving a rendition from the foreign language into English.

On the foreign language channel, you will hear all utterances made by anyone with an unmuted mic on the foreign language channel including any renditions from the interpreter into the foreign language and responses from the participant.

There is an option in the Language Interpretation menu to "Mute Original Audio". The "Original Audio" refers to the audio signal from the other language channel. For example, when in the English channel, you may hear the foreign language at a lower volume and vice versa. **By selecting this option, you will only hear the utterances on the channel that you selected.** 

## Chat Feature

There is also a Chat feature in Zoom that can be controlled by the host.

To avoid people using the Chat feature inappropriately it is recommended that this feature is curtailed to:

- "Host Only"
- "No One"
- "Only Permitted to Speak Publicly"

This is controlled through the Chat options in the chat window after you click the ellipses (...).

Zoom Group Chat	- [	ı ×	All day documentation n.us/j/92502824
			All day
			e <b>l for FY21 Cou</b> :ing
			All day raig ce
	(°) Fil	e	of Court Operat ams Meeting
Type message here			
type message nere	Save Chat		
	Participar	nt Can Chat	With:
	No Or	ne	
	Host (	Dnly	
	Everyo	one Publicly	/
	✓ Everyo	one Publicly	y and Privately
	Merge to	Meeting W	lindow

#### Waiting Room

As people enter the meeting, they will be placed in a waiting room until admitted by the host. The host will see a message indicating that they have people waiting to be admitted.



**Note:** The host can send any participant into the waiting room or remove them from the meeting at any time.

#### Recording

The host can restrict who can and cannot record the meeting. If you do not wish for anyone to be able to record, you can find that option in the participant menu.

This menu also allows you to stop their video, mute them, send to the waiting room, and remove them from the meeting.



In-Meeting Recording Indicator

If recording is used either for the purposes of keeping the record or assisting the court reporter gain a more accurate record, a notification will appear in the top left corner of the screen indicating that recording has started.



Participant Menu

## Ending a Meeting

At the end of the meeting, the host can end the meeting for all participants, or the host may leave the meeting while permitting others to remain. For the latter option, a new host would need to be designated by the exiting host. In either case, begin by clicking the red "End" icon in the bottom right of the of the screen. A window will open as show in the picture to the right.

If the host wants to leave and prevent all participants from staying, click the "End Meeting for All" which will close the meeting room entirely.



# USING BREAKOUT ROOMS FOR ATTORNEY-CLIENT CONFERENCES

If a bench conference or an attorney-client conference is needed during a meeting, the host can open breakout rooms from the menu.



When clicked, the "Create Breakout Rooms" menu will open. This allows you to assign participants to rooms.

Any unassigned participants will remain in the main session.

The host can create as many as 50 breakout rooms to accommodate the needs.

Breakout Rooms - Not Started	×
<ul> <li>Breakout Room 1</li> </ul>	1
<ul> <li>Breakout Room 2</li> </ul>	2
	_
	_
	_
Recreate V Options V Add a Room Open All R	ooms

Each participant is asked if they would like to join the room, and upon selecting "Join", the user is then notified that they are leaving the main session.

The host can use the Chat feature to broadcast into all of the rooms at once, however the participants of the breakout rooms cannot communicate outside of the breakout room. The host can manually assign people to the room such as attorneys or defendants and interpreters.

Create Breakout Rooms

Assign 0 participants into 1

0 participants per room

Create Rooms

×

Contraction Contractica Con

The host can see the list of breakout room participants to ensure that only the required participants are in the room. While the host may enter any breakout room if needed, no other participant will be able to enter without the host's permission.

**Note:** The Language Interpretation feature is NOT available in the breakout rooms. If interpretation is needed, all interpretation will need to be done in the consecutive mode.

In addition, the host will have to place the interpreter into the appropriate breakout room with the parties.





The participants in the breakout room can request the host join the room by clicking on the "Ask for Help" button on the menu.

The host will receive a request to join the breakout room if they choose to be able to speak directly to the participants of that room rather than sending chat messages.



The host can also force-close all the breakout rooms. During the force-close the participant is warned that the room is closing and given a count down.

Breakout Rooms	×
Breakout Rooms will close in 53 seconds	
You will be returned to the main session automatically.	
Leave Breakout Room	

Participants can also leave the breakout rooms on their own to return to the main session which allows them to return after the conference is finished without having to be readmitted back to the meeting. The breakout rooms will remain open even if no one is assigned to them if the participants just leave and return to the main session.

# INTERPRETING AND INTERPRETER CONTROLS IN ZOOM

Joining the Meeting as an Interpreter

Interpreters join the Zoom meeting by a link provided by the court.



The court may choose to assign the interpreter when creating the meeting using the interpreter's email address. The interpreter will receive a no-reply email from Zoom with link.

The court may also forward just the meeting link to the interpreter in a separate email customized with court-related information (below).

Interpreters and participants do NOT have to have a paid license to join the court's meeting.

However, all participants must download the appropriate Zoom application for their computer or mobile device. Interpreters will be prompted to download the application upon clicking a Zoom meeting link for the first time. See the <u>Joining a</u> <u>Meeting</u> page for more information.



The image above is not necessarily representative of what the email from the court will look like.

After downloading the appropriate Zoom application, the interpreter and other participants may wait in a virtual waiting room as court staff readies the Zoom meeting.

**Tip!** Always test your device's audio and video before entering the Zoom meeting. Other features are available including sound controls, camera controls, and even a <u>virtual background feature</u>.

Please wait, the meeting host will let you in soon.
County Justice Court's Meeting Room
Test speaker and microphone

## Zoom Meeting Basics

The following details certain features you may see when the interpretation feature is enabled in a Zoom meeting.



- 1. Mute/unmute your microphone. (The court may limit the functionality of this feature)
- 2. Turn off your camera. (The court may limit the functionality of this feature)
- 3. View the list of participants.
- 4. Chat with meeting participants. (The court may limit the functionality of this feature)
- 5. Participants of the meeting. (*Note: The labels on each participant are for reference only and will not appear in the meeting.*)
- 6. Change your view so you see just the speaker or all participants.
- 7. The Zoom interpretation feature.

## Zoom Interpretation Feature

The Zoom interpretation feature allows the interpreter to tune into the appropriate audio channel to provide simultaneous interpreting services for court events. Court staff serves as the host, activating the interpretation feature in the meeting and assigning the appropriate participant the role of interpreter. When you are designated as the interpreter you will see the following:



- 1. The message when a participant is assigned the interpreter role.
- 2. The toggle button used to hear and interpret in the English and the foreign language audio channels.
- 3. The audio channel indicator for each interpreter. These may appear as two-letter language codes rather than flags.

#### How it Works

1. All the participants join the meeting using the link provided by the host.

**Tip!** You can change your name in the list of participants. Adding the words "[language] interpreter" after your name will help identify your role in the proceedings to others in the meeting. Just click the ellipsis (...) next to your name in the participant list.

2. The host (court staff) activates the Zoom interpretation feature. The Interpretation button appears in the task bar.



language channel. For example, when in the English channel, you may hear the foreign language at a lower volume and vice versa.

<u>Selecting "Mute Original Audio"</u> mutes the other audio channel so you only hear the selected language.

3. The host will assign the interpreter the interpreter role in the meeting. The interpreter will see a "Welcome"

4. LEP participants must click the "Interpretation" button in the toolbar and will be presented with the audio-channel

options menu for English and the foreign language.

Note: It may be necessary to explain this to the LEP participants while still on the main English

*Mute Original Audio Feature:* The "Original Audio" refers to the audio signal from the other

message.

channel.

If not selected, both channels remain active (audible). For example, the LEP participant in the Chinese channel may also hear the English channel at a slightly lower volume.

5. The interpreter checks with participants on the foreign language or English audio channel to make sure they can be heard, and then informs the court staff that they are ready to begin.



	Language Interpretation	Done
Origi	nal Audio	
Engli	sh	
Chin	ese	~
Mute	Original Audio	
	SEE NOTE ABOUT THIS FEATURE	
		-



6. The proceeding begins, and the interpreter begins interpreting.

7. When needed, the interpreter switches back and forth between the two channels.

For example, when the LEP participant has a question or responds to a question from the court, the interpreter must select "English" to interpret into English, and then select "Chinese" (in the example on the left) to resume interpreting for the LEP participant. **Note:** Interpreters should use a desktop or laptop computer to most effectively use the Zoom interpretation feature. Shortcut keys provide an efficient way to move between channels in fast-paced court hearings.

8. The proceeding ends and court staff ends the meeting.

#### Interpreter Resources and Best Practices

Even the most qualified and skilled interpreters sometimes find remote interpreting challenging. However, with focused remote-interpreting practice and an investment of time, most interpreters can provide high-quality and seamless remote interpreting services to the Arizona judiciary. Here are some online resources some interpreters have found helpful:

#### **Remote Interpreting:**

Expanding Your Toolbox: Using Zoom for Remote Simultaneous Interpreting by The National Center for Interpretation (Vimeo)

Zoom for Interpreters by Dragoman Language Solutions (YouTube)

<u>Remote Interpreting in a COVID-19 World</u> by Remote Simul Interpreting (YouTube)

VRI Training Modules for Interpreters by The National Center for State Courts

Intro to Remote Interpreting by Interpretips (YouTube)

Basic Protocols and Professional Etiquette in Remote Interpreting by Interpretips (YouTube)

#### Equipment:

Setting Yourself Up for Remote Interpreting by Interpretips (YouTube)

<u>PC Headset Options for Remote Interpreting</u> (or <u>the Mac version</u>) by Remote Simul Interpreting (YouTube)

# OTHER INFORMATION: SMALL FORMAT SCREENS

The Zoom interpretation feature is available for desktop and laptop computers, as well as mobile devices. It is recommended that interpreters and court staff use the Zoom desktop client for court business. The interface is more user-friendly, and the Zoom interpretation features are more easily accessed in the computer application. Tablets, such as iPads, will also work well. Smartphones are generally not recommended.

## LEP Participants in Remote Court Events

Court staff is the host for any remote court event using Zoom. Participants join the Zoom meeting by a link provided by the court. The court should provide notice to the litigants about how to participate in the remote event and that interpreter services will be provided free of charge. The court can provide this information in translated forms, through direct communications of qualified bilingual staff, or through the use of telephone interpreter services.

**Court customers and other participants do NOT need a paid license to join the court's meeting.** However, all participants must download the appropriate Zoom application for their computer or mobile device. See the <u>Joining a Meeting</u> page for more information.

## Zoom Meeting Basics for Mobile Devices

The following details what may be seen in a Zoom meeting when viewed from certain mobile devices:

- 1. Mute/unmute your microphone. (The court may limit the functionality of this feature.)
- Turn off your camera. (The court may limit the functionality of this feature.)
  - a. A right or left swipe may also change adjust setting.
- 3. View the list of participants.
- 4. Chat with meeting participants. (The court may limit the functionality of this feature.)
- 5. Participants of the meeting. (Note: The labels on each participant are for reference and will not appear in the meeting.)
- 6. Change your view so you see just the speaker or all participants.
  - a. A right or left swipe may also change adjust setting.
- 7. The Zoom interpretation feature.



## Zoom Interpretation Feature for Mobile Devices

In the event the interpretation feature needs to be used on a mobile phone, the following information may be helpful:

 LEP participants use the "More" ellipsis (...) to expand the menu which lists the "Language Interpretation" feature.

**Tip!** Other audio, video, and accessibility features for the meeting are available through the "Meeting Settings" selection, including sound controls, camera controls, and even a <u>virtual background feature</u>.

**Note:** The "Raise Hand" feature can be used by participants who are muted to indicate that they wish to speak in the proceeding. This is useful tool when managing events with interpreters to prevent parties speaking over one another.

2. After clicking "Language Interpretation", LEP participants are presented with the foreign language audio channel selection menu.





*Mute Original Audio Feature:* The "Original Audio" refers to the audio signal from the other language channel. For example, when in the English channel, you may hear the foreign language at a lower volume and vice versa.

<u>Selecting this feature</u> mutes the other audio channel so you only hear the selected language.

<u>If unselected</u>, both channels remain active (audible). For example, The LEP participant in the Chinese channel may also hear the English channel at a slightly lower volume.



The LEP participant is tuned to the foreign language audio channel.

## How it Works

- 1. All the participants join the meeting using the link provided by the host.
- 2. The host (court staff) activates the Zoom interpretation feature. The "Interpretation" button appears in the task bar.
- 3. The LEP participant clicks the "Language Interpretation" feature to select the foreign language audio channel.
- 4. The interpreter checks with the LEP participant on the foreign language audio channel or English channel to make sure they hear one another, and the interpreter informs court staff that they are ready to begin.
- 5. The proceeding begins, the interpreter begins interpreting on the foreign language audio channel.
- 6. When needed, the interpreter switches back and forth between the two channels. For example, when the LEP participant has a question or responds to a question from the court, the interpreter must select "English" to interpret into English, and then selects the other language to resume interpreting for the LEP participant.
- 7. The proceeding ends and court staff end the Zoom meeting.

#### Participant Resources

- Zoom Download Center
- <u>Users & Participants FAQ</u>
- Joining a Meeting

3. The audio channel indicator.